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Contents of Addendum 1 

A. Questions and Answers 
Enclosed are questions and answers that were asked at the pre-submission conference on 
February 18, 2025, as well as questions sent to the RFP email address through February 20, 2025. 
 

B. Update to Appendix D (Financial Assumptions) 
This appendix has been updated to include additional guidance about homeless set-aside units. 
 

C. Contact Information 
Contact information is provided for those individuals who registered for the pre-submission 
conference and indicated their willingness to share their contact information. 

 

  



A. Questions and Answers 
General 

1. Will you share the list of attendees of this call with contact info for teaming purposes? 
The list of those who opted to share their contact information can be found in Section C of this 
addendum. 
 

2. Could a developer suggest a nearby site in the same Community District to build the 
project? Could the library be located elsewhere? 
No, this RFP is a request for development proposals for the existing Grand Concourse Library 
site, which is owned by the City. 
 

3. Is it possible that a community benefits agreement (CBA) will be required?  
HPD is not contemplating a CBA for the project at this time. However, this is something that 
would be determined at a later phase, after the Development Team has been designated.  
 

4. Will applicants who make it to the 2nd phase of review be alerted or no? 
No; to preserve the integrity of the RFP competitive review process, HPD does not share 
information on submission status with Respondents during the course of review. 
 

5. Will clarification questions only be issued during phase 2 of review? 
Clarification questions will be issued to a larger subset of teams during Phase 1 of review. After 
clarification responses are reviewed, a subset of teams will be selected to move on to Phase 2 of 
review. 
 

Development Team 

6. Can the 25% M/WBE requirement be met with one single subconsultant (e.g. a WBE sub) 
without having any managing ownership in the development team? 
The Development Team must meet HPD’s Equitable Ownership Requirement and include an 
M/WBE or Eligible Non-Profit that in either case will hold at least 25% of the managing ownership 
interest in the Project. One firm must meet the equitable ownership requirement of 25% – this 
cannot be split amongst multiple entities. 
 
There are additional preference points for respondents with certified M/WBEs as part of the 
Development Team. 
 

7. Will New York City Certified MWBE firms count toward the MWBE goal? 
Yes. 
 

  



8. What's the timing for the NYPL hiring its architect? 
The library architect should be identified and hired by the development team during the Open 
Request phase of the RFP. The library architect can be one and the same or different from the 
building architect. 
 

9. How favorably (or unfavorably) would HPD and NYPL view having a Community Land Trust 
(CLT) as part of the development team? 
Development teams are welcome to include a CLT in their proposals. 
 

Community Engagement 

10. Given the visioning that you have already done, will there be an expectation of further 
community engagement during the design process? What would that visioning entail? 
Once designated, HPD and NYPL expect the Development Team to be in frequent 
communication with Bronx CB4 and other community stakeholders (in coordination with HPD 
and NYPL) throughout the predevelopment phase and public approvals. 
 
NYPL typically conducts follow-up outreach on library programming during the design process. 
NYPL will work with the Development Team on strategy, content, and timing of any additional 
outreach needed. 
 

Temporary Relocation of Library Services 

11. Given the relatively few retail spaces in the area, how imperative is the option to provide a 
temporary library space for the proposal? Separate from the developer, is the NYPL also 
looking for options on their own? 
Providing a temporary space for core library services during construction is a preference criterion 
in the RFP and not required. NYPL and the City have the capacity to look for options after the 
project has been awarded. 
 

12. What is the square footage need for the optional temporary library space? What are the 
programmatic needs for the limited core services that a temporary space would house? 
Would a community center with programming be useable for temp location or it must be a 
retail or space not currently being utilized? 
There is no minimum square footage or required type of space. The goal of providing temporary 
library space is to address the need for core services for the community. Per the RFP, the space 
needs to be accessible, have its own entrance (no shared access with any other building uses), 
and be within walking distance (approximately 0.25 miles) of the existing branch. 
 

13. What is the maximum allowable duration for the temporary relocation of the New York 
Public Library? 
The space will need to be operational from the time demolition begins to the time the new library 
space is ready to reopen. 



Library Program 

14. What is the developer allowed to suggest by way of programming for the library? Would the 
NYPL invite LOIs with local groups to provide community programming? 
NYPL often partners with CBOs and local institutions, but ultimately NYPL will be responsible for 
providing all library programming. 
 

15. The Community Visioning Report mentioned a desire for specific library programming. Can 
we assume that NYPL will run this programming in the new space or is it advised to have an 
organization in the development team that will offer programming and services to the 
community in a separate community facility space? 
Same answer as the question above (#14). 
 

Residential Program 

16. Per the CVR, priority populations are low-income families with children, seniors, and 
individuals with mental disabilities or those receiving public assistance. Can you please 
define, "individuals with mental disabilities"? 
This reference does not refer to a specific type of housing that supports individuals with mental 
disabilities. 
 

17. Will the amenities in the building be open to NYPL patrons? 
No, the residential amenities will not be accessible to library patrons. 
 

18. Does the RFP have a preference for demographics with regards to the residents? 
While there is no stated preference, Respondents are encouraged to consider the demographics 
of the surrounding neighborhood, the results of community engagement summarized in the 
Community Visioning Report, and the populations served by HPD’s term sheets when 
determining the residential program. 
 

Design and Open Space 

19. Are there are minimum floor height requirements for the library? 
While there are no strict requirements, 12 feet is preferred for reading rooms, and back-of-house 
spaces may be lower, but generally not less than 10 feet. 
 

20. Is there a preference for the library to be on the ground floor? Can it be on, or have other 
floors on, the upper floors/top floors? 
The Project Snapshot of the RFP specifies that the new library unit must be located on the first 
and second floors of the new building. 
 

  



21. Is there any desire for outdoor space for the library? 
No, due to the size and constraints of the site, the preference is to maximize the square footage 
of the library. 
 

22. Could the roof of the library area (3rd Floor level) be considered for outdoor space? 
Any building setbacks or terraces above the second floor may be proposed as open space for 
residents, but not as publicly accessible open space for library patrons. 
 

23. Does NYPL have a desire for a loading dock or receiving area? 
The library receives deliveries every night. Ideally NYPL would share a service entrance with the 
residential unit for this purpose. The library does not require a loading dock. 
 

Finance 

24. Should the HPD subsidy for demolition be considered as supplemental to the term sheet 
subsidy limits for the construction of the new housing, or would subsidy for new 
construction be net of demo? i.e. if term sheet subsidy was up to, say, $140K per dwelling 
unit, would $20K per dwelling unit go toward demo and $120K for ground up new 
construction? 
Applicants should assume the term sheet limits in published term sheets. HPD acknowledges 
that projects may need subsidy over term sheet limits in the current cost environment. 
Applicants should show the additional subsidy amount needed in underwriting models and 
financial assumptions, including for expenses such as demolition if necessary. 
 

25. Given the median household income in the Bronx being under the NYC median could we put 
any prevailing wage or project labor agreement language into the project?  
Respondents are welcome to propose this in their Submissions. Please be sure to make sure to 
discuss in the submission narratives, and that costs and underwriting accurately reflect this. 
 

26. Is there a target budget for library costs? 
No; HPD and NYPL expect Respondents to propose a budget for the library costs. 
 

27. How will the costs of fitting out or renovating a temporary space be funded? 
Per the Project Snapshot of the RFP, if a temporary relocation of library services is proposed, 
financial proposals should show the costs of the relocation in the budget, including but not 
limited to moving costs, fit-out, and rent. Applicants should show how this temporary relocation 
would be funded, including showing a proposed subsidy source if applicable. 
 

28. In the presentation, it was referenced that $13.5M in city capital funds are already allocated 
for the library. Does this source need to be reflected in the budget separately or is this 
captured in the library’s capital funds? 
These capital funds should be considered as a portion of the “NYPL source” referenced in the 
Project Snapshot of the RFP and should not be reflected in the budget separately. 



B. Update to Appendix D (Financial Assumptions) 
Projects considering a homeless component with rental assistance other than PBV (for example ESSHI or 
15/15) must have at least 30 units under the contract to be considered. 

If proposing a project under the Neighborhood Construction Program (NCP): All buildings may include up 
to 30% of the units for formerly homeless households (whether OurSpace, ESSHI, 15/15, or another 
framework). For all other HPD/HDC Programs, refer to the published term sheet.



(continued next page) 
 

Grand Concourse Library and Affordable Housing RFP Financial Assumptions 
NOTE: content in RED was added on 02/21/2025 
 
TERM SHEETS 
Proposed project financing should adhere to all HPD-HDC term sheet requirements as applicable. HPD 
will not accept project proposals featuring Affordable Independent Residences for Seniors (“AIRS”) if 
applied to a non-SARA building. Please refer to Land Use/Zoning under Project Snapshot in the RFP 
document for guidance on City of Yes for Housing Opportunity (“COYHO”) assumptions. 
 
INTEREST RATES 
Assume the following interest rates in the financing proposal. Deferred interest should be shown as both 
a use and a source in the Development Budget. 
 

Construction Loan 
Private Lender 

 
7.00% 

HDC Short-term Bonds* 
HDC Long-term Bonds* 

3.80% 
5.40% 

HDC Subsidy 1.25% paid 
HPD Subsidy (rental) 0.25% paid + 

4.00% deferred 
Reso A (rental) 0.25% paid + 

1.00% deferred 
HPD Subsidy and Reso A 

(homeownership) 
0.25% paid + 
0% deferred 

* No reinvestment/negative arbitrage 
 

Permanent Loan 
Private Lender and 

Homeownership End Loans 
6.25% 

HDC Long-term Bonds (40-
year loan term) 

 
5.90%** 

HDC Subsidy 1.00% paid 
HPD Subsidy (rental) 0% paid + 

4.00% deferred 
Reso A (rental) 0% paid + 

1.00% deferred 
HPD Subsidy and Reso A 

(homeownership) 
0% paid + 

0% deferred 
**5.90% all-in: 5.50% base rate + 0.50% MIP 

LOW-INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDITS (LIHTC) 
Recommended credit type If proposing Low-income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC): 

For a project (an individual financing closing) 
with ≤ 120 units 

9% LIHTC 
If proposing HPD 9% LIHTC, annual credit amount 
recommended to be no more than $23,000 per LIHTC unit 

For a project (an individual financing closing) 
with > 120 units 

4% LIHTC with bond financing 

 
PROJECT-BASED VOUCHERS 
If proposing Section 8 Project-based Vouchers (PBV), assume gross rents equal to 100% of the FY2024 
FMR. Utility allowances should be subtracted from gross rents. 
 
ESSHI 
If proposing ESSHI, the rental assistance should correspond to maximum 60% of AMI rents. 
 

  



(continued next page) 
 

15/15 
Projects considering a homeless component with rental assistance other than PBV (for example ESSHI or 
15/15) must have at least 30 units under the contract to be considered. 
 
If proposing NYC 15/15, use the following payment standards. Utility allowances should be subtracted 
from these rents. 

Studio 
$1,584 

1 BR 
$1,663 

2 BR 
$1,918 

3 BR 
$2,463 

4 BR 
$2,656 

 
If proposing a project under the Neighborhood Construction Program (NCP): All buildings may include up 
to 30% of the units for formerly homeless households (whether OurSpace, ESSHI, 15/15, or another 
framework). For all other HPD/HDC Programs, refer to the published term sheet. 

 
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS (M&O): Submissions should use the latest versions of HDC M&O 
Standards: 

• 2024 Maintenance and Operating Expense Standards  
• Respondents may assume non-prevailing wages for building service workers for buildings 

containing less than 120 units. For buildings with 120 or more units, prevailing wages for 
building service workers are required. 

• For a project or project phase proposed under the Open Door term sheet (homeownership) 
only, applicants may alternatively use CPC 2024 M&O standards included in this appendix for 
the Open Door portion. 

https://www.nychdc.com/sites/default/files/2024-06/2024%20Maintenance%20and%20Operating%20Expense%20Standards%20-%20Revised_1_0.pdf


 
 

The Community Preservation Corporation 
New York City M&O Standards for 2024 

 
Category Standard  

Collections/Vacancy: 5.00% vacant buildings or new construction 
 10.00% preservation deals without excellent collections history 

Management: 6.50% of effective revenue 
 8.00% of effective revenue for coops, LIHTC & supportive 

Payroll: $1,500 per unit based on historical and budget 
 $2,000 per unit for union or prevailing wage 

Cleaning & exterminating: $140 per room 

Heat – Gas: $325 per room, less 10% with Enterprise Green Communities 
          Electric Heat Pump: $360 per room, less 10% with EGC 
          Oil or Dual Fuel: $400 per room, less 10% with EGC 

Common Electric: $175 per room for walk-up, less 10% with EGC 
 $200 per room for elevator, less 10% with EGC 

Water Sewer: $300 
Fixed 

per room, less 10% with EGC 
at MCP rate if building is in DEP MCP Program 

Insurance: $1,500 per unit for buildings with greater than 20 units 
 $1,900 per unit for buildings less than 20 units 

Elevator: $7,500 per cab (or pursuant to elevator contract) 

Repair & Replacement: $1,000 per unit (includes painting) 

Legal: $250 per unit 

Accounting: $2,000 buildings less than 20 units, unaudited 
 $4,000 building greater than 20 units, unaudited 
 $12,000 audited (LIHTC & Coops) 

Benchmarking: $600 per project/building (or pursuant to contract) 

Coop Monitoring: $7,000 as applicable. Based on monitor contract amount. 

Building Reserve: $300 per unit 
 
 



C. Contact Information 
Organization Name Email May we share your 

contact information? 
Achieve Engineering Janette Wu jwu1007@achieveengineer.com Yes  
AECOM Aali Ladak aali.ladak@aecom.com Yes  
AI Engineers, Inc. Alex Shuey AShuey@AIEngineers.com Yes  
Ailanthus Elizabeth Canela ecanela@ailanthus.co Yes  
Ailanthus Vivian Liao vliao@ailanthus.co Yes  
Alembic Community Development Benjamin Warnke bwarnke@alembiccommunity.com Yes  
Alexander Gorlin Architects Theadora Williams officeadmin@gorlinarchitects.com Yes  
Alexander Gorlin Architects Justine Buchanan justine@gorlinarchitects.com Yes  
Allrenovations Const. LLC Pietro Calabretta  pietro@allrenovations.com Yes  
Andrea Steele Architecture Andrea Steele andrea@asa-ten.com Yes  
Andrew Berman Architect Vinci So vso@andrewbermanarchitect.com Yes  
Apex Building Group Jack Lei jlei@apexbuilds.com Yes  
Apex Building Group Daniel Cohen dcohen@apexbuilds.com Yes  
Architecture in Formation P.C. Daria Kondoff admin@aifny.com Yes  
Architecture Outfit Marta Sanders marta@archoutfit.com Yes  
Arketekcher Architecture DPC Michael Bevivino michael@arketekcher.com Yes  
Asian Americans for Equality Andrea Alexopoulos andrea_alexopoulos@aafe.org Yes  
AtelierTek Architects Daniel Hammerman daniel.hammerman@ateliertek.com Yes  
Aufgang Architects Shiva Ghomi shiva@aufgang.com Yes  
Barretto Bay Strategies Paul Lipson paul@barrettobay.com Yes  
Beacon Communities Jennifer Steinberg jsteinberg@beaconcommunitiesllc.com Yes  
Benzi & Goodrich Development Group LLC John Goodrich jgoodrich@benzigoodrich.com Yes  
Benzi & Goodrich Development Group, LLC Michael Benzi mbenzi@benzigoodrich.com Yes  
Bernheimer Architecture Andrew Bernheimer andy@bernheimerarchitecture.com Yes  
Beyer Blinder Belle John Delaney jdelaney@bbbarch.com Yes  
Beyer Blinder Belle Architects & Planners Kerry Nolan knolan@bbbarch.com Yes  



Beyer Blinder Belle Architects & Planners LLP Cassie Walker cwalker@bbbarch.com Yes  
BJH Advisors LLC Michael Meola mmeola@bjhadvisors.com Yes  
Blue Sea Development  Jacob Bluestone jacob.bluestone@blueseadev.com Yes  
Brisa Builders Chima Joseph chimajoseph@brisabuilders.com Yes  
Bronx Pro Group Daniel Parcerisas dparcerisas@bronxprogroup.com Yes  
Bronx Pro Group Joseph Frewer jfrewer@bronxprogroup.com Yes  
Bronx Pro Group Mollye Liu mliu@bronxprogroup.com Yes  
Calvert Wright Architecture PC | Spatial Discipline Calvert Wright AIA calvert@spatialdiscipline.com Yes  
Calyx Development Alana Smith alana@calyx.nyc Yes  
Camber Property Group Joanna Kandel jkandel@camberpg.com Yes  
Camber Property Group Karen Hu khu@camberpg.com Yes  
Camber Property Group Sarah Pizer spizer@camberpg.com Yes  
Capalino Mark Thompson markt@capalino.com Yes  
Carey Group LLC Stephen Hayes shyes@careyllc.com Yes  
Carthage Advisors Pichmonyka Chan pchan@carthageadvisors.com Yes  
Cheever Development Corp. Aditya Verma averma@cheeverdevelopment.com Yes  
CMC Development Group hugo munoz hmunoz@cmcdevelopmentnyc.com Yes  
CMC Development Group Shaun Belle Sbelle@cmcdevelopmentnyc.com Yes  
Comunilife, Inc. Karuna Mehta kmehta@comunilife.org Yes  
Construction Information Systems Debra Sauerman debras@cisleads.com Yes  
Curtis + Ginsberg Archtitects Mark Ginsberg mark@cplusga.com Yes  
Dair Development Paul Fuschetti pfuschetti@dairdevelopment.com Yes  
Dattner Architects Khadjah Mills kmills@dattner.com Yes  
david cunningham architecture planning pllc David Cunningham david@dcapny.com Yes  
Diamond Schmitt Architects Jen Carbno jcarbno@dsai.ca Yes  
Diamond Schmitt Architects Gary McCluskie gmccluskie@dsai.ca Yes  
Diamond Schmitt Architects Kate Featherstone kfeatherstone@dsai.ca Yes  
DXA Studio Joshua Yates jy@dxastudio.com Yes  
East Coast Mechanical Contracting Corp. Michael Petillo mpetillo@eastcoastpetro.com Yes  
EDI International Evan Yan evan.yan@edi-international.com Yes  



EnTech Engineering Kaveh Samimi ksamimi@entech.nyc Yes  
ESKW/Architects Kimberly Murphy kmurphy@eskwarchitects.com Yes  
ESKW/Architects Andrew Knox aknox@eskwarchitects.com Yes  
ESKW/Architects Randy Wood rwood@eskwarchitects.com Yes  
Fairstead Ellen Shakespear ellen.shakespear@fairstead.com Yes  
Fairstead Lilah Brenowitz lilah.brenowitz@fairstead.com Yes  
Fairstead Michael Kornspun michael.kornspun@fairstead.com Yes  
Fairstead Sonya Mantell sonya.mantell@fairstead.com Yes  
Fairstead Yuhan Hu yuhan.hu@fairstead.com Yes  
Fast + Epp Structural Engineers Krystal Yee kyee@fastepp.com Yes  
Fast+Epp Jason Glenn jglenn@fastepp.com Yes  
Fifth Ave Committee Karina Goncharuk KGoncharuk@fifthave.org Yes  
Fifth Avenue Committee Karina Goncharuk kgoncharuk@fifthave.org Yes  
Fifth Avenue Committee William Yates wyates@fifthave.org Yes  
Fish Plate Development LLC Maggie Poxon maggie@fishplatedevelopment.com Yes  
Fulcrum Properties Jack Heaney jack@fulcrumprop.com Yes  
Galaxy GC Group Ari Zervoudis aszervoudis@galaxygc.com Yes  
Galaxy General Contracting Corp.  Richard Sica rsica@galaxygc.com Yes  
Genesis Companies Denise St. Just-Cordero dcordero@genesiscompanies.com Yes  
Gensler Anne Chen anne_chen@gensler.com Yes  
Gilbane Development Company Andrew Olivo aolivo@gilbaneco.com Yes  
Grain Collective Sapna Advani sapna@graincollective.com Yes  
Greene Developers Kevin Shabazz kevin@greenedevelopers.com Yes  
Greene Developers  Cedric Ilboudo cilboudo34@gmail.com Yes  
Grimshaw Iouyu Chen Iouyu.chen@grimshaw.global Yes  
Habitat NYC & Westchester  charlotte bell cbell@habitatnycwc.org Yes  
Habitat NYC and Westchester Juliana Bernal Guinand jbernal@habitatnycwc.org Yes  
HANAC Sam Burtnick sburtnick@hanac.org Yes  
Handel Architects Jonathan Kinsley jkinsley@handelarchitects.com Yes  



Harlem Congregations for Community 
Improvement, Inc. (HCCI) Dr. Malcolm A. Punter mpunter@hcci.org Yes  
Henge Development LLC Ayanna Oliver-Taylor ayanna@hengedevelopment.com Yes  
HWKN James Roebuck jr@hwkn.com Yes  
IMC Architecture Dominick Casale dcasale@imcarch.com Yes  
IMEG Jeffrey Jones jeffrey.a.jones@imegcorp.com Yes  
Innovative Property Management & Dev Inc. Miriam Rodriguez Ipmdevelopment@aol.com Yes  
Invest Newark Marcus Randolph mrandolph@investnewark.org Yes  
J. Rust Consulting LLC Jason Rust jason@jrustconsulting.com Yes  
Jeffrey I. Rosenberg Architect P.C. JEFFREY ROSENBERG JIR@JIRAPC.COM Yes  
Karp Strategies Leo Shaw leo@karpstrategies.com Yes  
Kimberly Brown Architecture PLLC Kimberly Brown kimberly@kba-nyc.com Yes  
KPFF Consulting Engineers Shadi Boulos shadi.boulos@kpff.com Yes  
L+M Development Partners Heli Pinillos-Schwartz hpinillos@lmdp.com Yes  
L+M Development Partners Jerald Watson jwatson922@gmail.com Yes  
L+M Development Partners Jerald Watson jwatson@lmdp.com Yes  
Langan Atena Vladu avladu@langan.com Yes  
LCOR Andrew Laboz alaboz@lcor.com Yes  
Lemle & Wolff Sofia Zises szises@lemlewolff.com Yes  
Lemle & Wolff  Patrick Logan plogan@lemlewolff.com Yes  
Lemle & Wolff Inc Anivelca Cordova acordova@lemlewolff.com Yes  
Leroy Street Studio Jonathan Grzywacz communications@leroystreetstudio.com Yes  
Leroy Street Studio Arom Jeon ajeon@leroystreetstudio.com Yes  
Leroy Street Studio. Architects Marc Turkel mturkel@leroystreetstudio.com Yes  
Lettire Construction Corp Jordanna Lacoste jlacoste@lettire.com Yes  
LEVENBETTS David Leven info@levenbetts.com Yes  
Living City Project Andrew Meyers ameyers@livingcityproject.com Yes  
Loci Architecture David Briggs dbriggs@lociarchitecture.com Yes  
LTG Fellowship LLC Gladstone Nicholson ltgfellowshipllc@gmail.com Yes  
MAP architects Fernando Villa fvilla@maparchitects.com Yes  



Marble Fairbanks Architects Christina LoBiondo christina@marblefairbanks.com Yes  
Marble Fairbanks Architects Karen Fairbanks karen@marblefairbanks.com Yes  
Marvel Pablo Ceja pceja@marveldesigns.com Yes  
Marvel Danielle Cerone dcerone@marveldesigns.com Yes  
Marvel Architects Landscape Architects Urban 
Planners Jennifer M Olson jolson@marveldesigns.com Yes  
MBB Architects Gideon Shapiro gshapiro@mbbarch.com Yes  
MBD Community Housing Corp. Derrick Lovett DLovett@mbdhousing.org Yes  
MBT Development Advisors LLC Ralph Declet rd@mbtadvisorygroup.com Yes  
MDA Designgroup Marsha-Ann Cadougan mac@mda-designgroup.com Yes  
MDA designgroup Architects & Planners Caitlin McManus cm@mda-designgroup.com Yes  
MDA Designgroup.Architects & Planners Elisabeth Martin emartin@mda-designgroup.com Yes  
Meltzer/Mandl Architects PC Eli Meltzer eli@meltzermandlpc.com Yes  
Milestone  Aaron Koffman akoffman@milestonecos.com Yes  
Mitchell Giurgola Samantha Tong tong@mitchellgiurgola.com Yes  
Mitchell Giurgola Carol Loewenson Loewenson@mitchellgiurgola.com Yes  
Mitchell Giurgola Danielle Stecher stecher@mitchellgiurgola.com Yes  
Mitchell Giurgola Samantha Tong tong@mitchellgiurgola.com Yes  
MLappin & Associates LLC Deborah Widerkehr deborah@mlappinllc.com Yes  
Moody Nolan Karen Miller kmiller@moodynolan.com Yes  
Moody Nolan Ochuko Edema oedema@moodynolan.com Yes  
N/A Rosaury Inirio  laaguilar08@gmail.com Yes  
nARCHITECTS Jason Ojeda jason.ojeda@narchitects.com Yes  
nARCHITECTS Mimi Hoang mimi.hoang@narchitects.com Yes  
Neris LLC Jeff Kitt jkitt@neris.nyc Yes  
NERIS LLC Kristine Sinkez ksinkez@neris.nyc Yes  
New York City District Council of Carpenters  Nicholas Neier Nneier@nycdistrictcouncil.org Yes  
Nixon Peabody LLP Alexandra Fiorentino afiorentino@nixonpeabody.com Yes  
Not sure Carol Haynes  Sufferibg1234@gmail.com Yes  
NYAH Advisors, LLC Catherine Townsend ctownsend@nyahadvisors.com Yes  



NYAH Advisors, LLC Diana Glanternik dglanternik@nyahadvisors.com Yes  
NYVARCH Architecture  Venesa Alicea-Chuqui valicea@nyvarch.com Yes  
O&S Associates Engineers and Architects  Tariq Wasti twasti@oandsassociates.com Yes  
O&S Associates Inc Scott Zimmerman szimmerman@oandsassociates.com Yes  
OBRA Architects Jennifer Lee jennifer@obraarchitects.com Yes  
One Bar Development Jessica Sherman jsherman@onebardevelopment.com Yes  
PAE Engineers Zoey Zemanek zoey.zemanek@pae-engineers.com Yes  
Pathways Program Chelsea Charles info@pathways-program.org Yes  

PEI Architects  
Rossana Gutierrez de 
Lubetsky gutierrez@pei-architects.com Yes  

Perkins Eastman Architects Ernesto Vela e.vela@perkinseastman.com Yes  
Peter Gisolfi Associates Mariela Ortega mortega@petergisolfiassociates.com Yes  
Peterson Rich Office Greta Crispen greta@pro-arch.com Yes  
PRAXES Ji Young Kim praxes@praxes-ny.com Yes  
Prospect Housing Partners & Rockabill Consulting  Katie Devine kdevine@rockabill.com Yes  
Purpose by Design Architects Julie Chou jchou@pxdarchitects.com Yes  
Purpose by Design Architects Kamila Altman kaltman@pxdarchitects.com Yes  
PWXPress Mary Miller bids@pwxpress.com Yes  
Rafael Viñoly Architects Christina Kruise christina@vinoly.com Yes  
RiseBoro Community Partnership Emily Kurtz ekurtz@riseboro.org Yes  
RiseBoro Community Partnership Inc Susue Li sli@riseboro.org Yes  
RKTB Peter Bafitis pbafitis@rktb.com Yes  
RKTB Architects Alex Brito abrito@rktb.com Yes  
RKTB Architects, P.C. Luanne Konopko lkonopko@rktb.com Yes  
Ronnette Riley Architect Jennifer Greene jg@ronnetteriley.com Yes  
Roux Marilyn Pimienta-Powers mpimienta@rouxinc.com Yes  
SBJ Group Gavri Slasky gslasky@sbjgroup.com Yes  
SBJ Group Jennifer Cheuk jcheuk@sbjgroup.com Yes  
SCAN-HARBOR Latainya Johnson Latainyaj@Scan-Harbor.org Yes  
SCCS GROUP LLC Ana Stockdale Ana@sccsgroupllc.com Yes  
SCCS Group LLC Gael Lamothe gael@sccsgroupllc.com Yes  



SD Builders and Construction  Ryan Goddard rgoddard@sdbuildersny.com Yes  
Selfhelp Realty Group Alison Lam alam@selfhelp.net Yes  
Services for the UnderServed Brian Turner bturner@sus.org Yes  
Settlement Housing Fund Caylin Bullock cbullock@shfinc.org Yes  
Settlement Housing Fund, Inc. Eliot Hetterly ehetterly@shfinc.org Yes  
Shakespeare Gordon Studio Teresa Lawlor teresa@sg.studio Yes  
Silver Wave Equities JD Walsh jd@silverwaveequities.com Yes  
SITU Michelle Kislyakov michelle@situ.nyc Yes  
Slate Property Group Barry Wang bwang@slatepg.com Yes  
Slate Property Group Michelle Ponce mponce@slatepg.com Yes  
SLM, Architecture P.C. Sakeenah Saleem ssaleem@thinkslm.com Yes  
Sorg and Associates, P.C. Riya Coutinho riya@sorg.design Yes  
Spacesmith Debbi Waters BD@spacesmith.com Yes  
Spatial Equity Co. LLC Teghvir Sethi teg@spatialequity.com Yes  
SSDC Construction & Consulting, LLC ShellyAnn Samuda ssamuda123@gmail.com Yes  
stagg group Kathleen R Bradshaw KBradshaw@stagggroup.com Yes  
Strada Ventures Evan Easterbrooks evan@stradanyc.com Yes  
Strada Ventures LLC Courtney Horwitz courtney.r.horwitz@gmail.com Yes  
Strada Ventures LLC Courtney Horwitz courtney@stradanyc.com Yes  
Studio Gang Audrey Washuta marketing@studiogang.com Yes  
Studio Hillier Felix Heidgen fheidgen@studiohillier.com Yes  
Taylor Environmental Group Inc. Jon Vafiadis jonv@taylorenvironmental.com Yes  
The Briarwood Organization Ira Brown ibrown@briarwoodorg.com Yes  
The Bridge Carole Gordon cgordon@thebridgeny.org Yes  
The Bridge Amelia O'Rourke aorourke@thebridgeny.org Yes  
The Community Builders, Inc. Lauryn Phinney lauryn.phinney@tcbinc.org Yes  
The Galante Architecture Studio, Inc. Todd Larson tl@galantearchitecture.com Yes  
The NRP Group Joyce Kwon jkwon@nrpgroup.com Yes  
The Penta Group John Napolitano j.napolitano@pentarestoration.com Yes  
Think! Architecture + Design Charlotte Wensley charlotte@think-arc.com Yes  



Tonab Architecture PLLC  Kyron Rose kyron@tonab.com Yes  
Tonab Architecture PLLC  Toney Baker toney@tonab.com Yes  
Tonab Architecture, PLLC  Terrence O'Neal terrence@tonab.com Yes  
Tonab Architecture, PLLC (MBE) (DBE) Jeff Charles Pierre Jeff@tonab.com Yes  
Trinity Financial Stacey Polishook spolishook@trinityfinancial.com Yes  
Trinity Financial Inc. Thomas Brown tbrown@trinityfinancial.com Yes  
Turner Construction Company Lisa HIckerson lhickerson@tcco.com Yes  
Unique People Services Aziza Anderson AzizaA@uniquepeopleservices.org Yes  
Unique people Services Fillerene Taylor Fillerenew@uniquepeopleservices.org Yes  
Unique People Services Lisa Downing lisad@uniquepeopleservices.org Yes  
Unique People Services Yvette Andre Yvetteba@uniquepeopleservices.org Yes  
Urbahn Architects PLLC Rafael Stein steinr@urbahn.com Yes  
Urban Architectural Initiatives Jorge Chang jchang@uai-ny.com Yes  
Urban Builders Collaborative LLC Nexida Mejia nmejia@lettire.com Yes  
Urban Builders Collaborative, LLC Jordanna Lacoste-Tichner jlacoste@lettire.com Yes  
Veneklasen Associates, Inc. nandini sharma nasharma@veneklasen.com Yes  
Via Collective Colleen Zukowski colleen.zukowski@viacollective.com Yes  
Volunteers of America-Greater New York, Inc. Marya Gilborn mgilborn@voa-gny.org Yes  
Westhab Dwan Stark dwan.stark@westhab.org Yes  
Westhab, Inc. Justine McPherson justine.mcpherson@westhab.org Yes  
Wilmot Inc. Natalie Connor nconnor@wilmotinc.com Yes  
Woods Bagot Jim Keen jim.keen@woodsbagot.com Yes  
Word of Life International Inc  Norma  Galloway Hghousing123@gmail.com Yes  
Workforce 1  dagem Menkir d.menkir16@gmail.com Yes  
WSP USA Inc. Ryan Moore ryan.moore@wsp.com Yes  
WXY architecture + urban design Ella Sprick esprick@wxystudio.com Yes  
WXY Architecture + Urban Design Jacob Dugopolski jacob@wxystudio.com Yes  
Xenolith Partners  Andrea Kretchmer andrea@xenolithpartners.com Yes  
XF Land Services, LLC  Nancy Jordan njordan1177@gmail.com Yes  
ZI Engineering, PC | MBE/DBE Atika Naeem atika@ziengineering.com Yes  
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